
Dorota Richards 

From: 
Sent 
To: 
Subject 

Attachments: BulrushIPPCletter - final.pdf 

FW: New submission entered for Reg no: PO599-02. (Reference Number: 
PO599-02-120214125129) 

From: Andrew Jackson (mailto:andrew@,friendsoftheirishenvironment.oral 
Sent: 14 February 2012 12:51 
To: Licensing Staff 
Subject: New submission entered for Reg no: PO599-02. (Reference Number: PO599-02-120214125129) 

    
    

    
    

    
For

 in
sp

ec
tio

n p
ur

po
se

s o
nly

.

Con
se

nt 
of

 co
py

rig
ht 

ow
ne

r r
eq

uir
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 ot

he
r u

se
.

EPA Export 16-02-2012:04:01:45



    
    

    
    

    
For

 in
sp

ec
tio

n p
ur

po
se

s o
nly

.

Con
se

nt 
of

 co
py

rig
ht 

ow
ne

r r
eq

uir
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 ot

he
r u

se
.

EPA Export 16-02-2012:04:01:45



hat site, either individually or i 

light of the site's conservation objectives, are to authorise such an activity only 
if they have made certain that it will not adversely affect the integrity of 
that site. That is the case where no reasonable scientific doubt remains 
as to the absence of such effects." 

in combination with other plans or projects Is likely to have a significant 
iffect on the European site. 

:6) The public authority shall determine that an Appropriate Assessment of 
a plan or project is required where the plan or project is not directly 
connected with or necessary to the management of the site as a European Site 
and if it cannot be excluded, on the basis of objective scientific 

roject, individually or in combination with other plans or projects, will 
ave a significant effect on a European site. 

16) ..... a public authority shall give consent for a plan or project, or undertake 
adopt a plan or project, only after having determined that the plan or 
oject shall not adversely affect the integrity of a European site." 

I ne ECJ's interpretation of Article 6(3) of the Habitats Directive, which goes to the heart 
of the EPA's current IPPC licensing decision, must of course be rdected in the EPA's 
interpretation of regulation 42 of the Habitats Regulations. Thus, in deciding whether or 
not to ensure an 'appropriate assessment' is undertaken as part of this IPPC licence 
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ust be taken into consideration. SUC 

"peat harvesting activities of less than 50 Hectares remain uncontrolled. The 

Second, following a site inspection to some of the peat edadon areas near Lough 

other activities." 

Bulrush or Westland, it is the 'in combination' effects of all operators in the area which 
is relevant here. 

Third, in additional support of our argument that signifcant effects cannot be excluded 
in the present case, we have included as Appendix 1 to this letter a copy of a report 
commissioned by the Site Protection Unit of the National Parks and Wildlife Service 
(NPWS). Note that the Site Protection Unit asked broadly the correct question for the 

~. ' 

,: 

conservation interest for Lough Derravargh [sic] SPA" 

The relevant issue for the purposes of Article 6(3) of the Habitats Directive is of course 
not whether there is firm evidence direct& linking peat extraction to waterbird declines. 
Rather, the correct questions are: 

excluded, an appropriate assessment is required; and 

(2) In light of the 'appropriate assessment'. whether reasonable scientific doubt remain 
as to the absence of adverse effects on the integrity of Lough Derravaragh SPA 
reasonable scientii doubt remains, an IPPC licence cannot be granted u n k s  Article 
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conservation interest [at Lough Derravaragh SPA. These declines range from 
22 to 77% when compared to the baseline dataset for the five year period 
1995/96 - 1999/2OOO. These recorded declines were cross checked with trend 
data at the all-Ireland scale in order to see if such declines were in agreement 
with national population changes. Table 3 clearly shows that the recoded [sic] 
declines at the site level are not in agreement with the national trends. 

,: . . .  . . .  
Restricting the analysis to the data rece'ived from regional management and 
compiled for the four-year period (2004/05 - 2007/08) an overall assessment 
would be one of unfavourable conservation status for each ofthe species listed 

' (i .. , .&., . 
,, .i; ' .5* . .c-. !., ;&qk.. 

.. ~.,. . . as special conservation interests of Lough Derravargh SPA 

When the scope of the data analysis was expanded it appears that the 
declines of Coot are not are severe as initially calculated. More targeted survey 
work would be needed in order to further asses the status for Whooper Swan 
at this site. Despite the fact that both Pochard and Tufted Duck have declined 
at the national scale the mag&& of the declines reported for Lough 
Derravargh SPA is of notable concern." 

regulation 43 ofthe Habitats Regulations. 

must be undertaken. The NPWS's report in Appendix 1 reveals: 

"marked declines in the site estimates of all of the species of speci 

he NPWS report therefore clearly supports the conclusion that, on the basis of 
objective scientific information, significant effects on Lough Derravaragh SPAcannot be 
excluded, takng account of the cumulatiie effects of BU~NS~'S activities and other peat 
extraction activities in the area. An 'appropriate assessmenf is therefore legally 

A note on 'in combination'lcumulative effects 

We note that there appear to be several peat extraction operations in the direct vicin 
of the site covered by Bulrush's IPPC application. Westland Horticulture's site is o 
example, but there are of course others. As the EPA knows, Westland Horticulture has 
applied for an IPPC licence in respect of its operations near Lough Derravaragh 
(PO914-01). As part of its application, Westland has submitted a report from OES 
Consulting, described as an "Appropriate Assessment (AA) Screening Assessment and 
Natura Impact Assessment" (NE. the assessment itself must of course be carried out 
by the EPA - all OESMlestland can do is supply evidence and their view of the 
sitdion). OES's report concludes that 

adversely affect the integrity and conservation status of any Natura 
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or annexed species once the mitigation measures and recanmendations a 

We have two comments to make here - note that these comments are relevant to 
consideration of ‘in combination’ effects by Bulrush as well as by Westland: 

“on the above assessments” (see section 11.2) -this appears to refer solely to issues 
relating to water quality, without referring to impacts on the ecological system as a 
whole (see paragraph 11.2). 

(2) OES believes that there will be no adverse impacts on the integrity of Lough 
Derravaragh SPA “once the mitigation measures and recommendations are adopted”. 
On review, it quickly becanes clear that these measures and recanmendations are 
cursory in nature (see section 10 of Westlands Appendix L.l). They make no 
reference to ‘in combination’ effeck, and one of the measures proposed clearly can 

those of others), OES cites plans for a Habitat Management Plan for rehabilitation of 
Westland‘s site post-extraction. It is very hard to see hanr a plan to rehabilitate 
Westland‘s peat harvesting site post-extraction can have any impact on the likelihood of 
impacts on Lough Derravaragh SPA while extraction is ongoing at the site. 

We trust that Bulrush will give more serious consideration to ‘in combination’ effects 

It is clear that an appropriate assessment is legally required in respect of Bulrush’s 
activities, in combination with those of other peat extractors in the area. Based on all of 
the above - and in light of the various repork we have cited, including the material in 
Appendix 1 below - it is very hard to see how it will be legally possible for the EPA to 
grant IPPC licences to Bulrush, Westland or any of the other peat extractors operating 
near Lough Derravaragh SPA That is, it is hard to see how the EPA will be in a 
position to conclude, following a properly executed appropriate assessment under 
regulation 42 of the Habitats Regulations, that no reasonable scientific doubt remains 

challenges by way of judicial review. 

We look forward to hearing from you in due course. 
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Conor ORagallaigh, Judit Keleman, Padraig ODonnell 

18/December/Z 

Peat extmction wrks an 

Site Protection Unit requested that Birds Unit examine available bird data for 
Lough Derrawragh Special Protection Area (SPA) to verify whether there is 
firm evidence that the relevant birds have not been adversely affected by the 
peat extraction and/or siltation. The following is Birds Unit's response to the 

Introduction: 

identifying the spe 
the reclassification of this site which is due to happen in 2010. 

Lough Demvaragh has been selected for SPA designation as it is one of the 
most suitable sites in the country for the following species: Pochard (Aythya 
ferina), Tufted Duck (Aythya fuligula) and Coot (Fu l i i  atra). In addition to the 
aforementioned species Whooper Swan (Cygnus Cygnus) is also considered 
to be of special co 
at this site in nationally important numbers. 

Article 4 of the Bi 
To this end the wet 
SPA, and the wate 
special conservation interest for the site. 

Those birds specifically listed as special conservation interests for this site 
were identifiid using waterbird data collected during the fm years of 1995/96 
- 1999EOOO. This is the baseline period, which is used for the majority of the 
wintering waterbird sites of the SPA network. The waterbird data that the 
baseline refers to was collected at a range of wetland sites around the country 
by NPWS staff and Birdwatch Ireland as part of the Irish Wetland Birds 
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mme'. Table 1 presents the 

Tufted Duck and Coot. 

Table 1 Baseline data Rr spades hat am of spechi consewalkn inbmst for Lough 

Robinson et a17 (1995/96 

I-WeBS (1995/96 - 1999l2000) 

I-WeBS (1995/96 - 1999l2000) 

I-WeBS (1995/96 - 1999l2000) 

Data on the bird counts undertaken by the relevant Conservation Ranger (CR) 
for the site in question for four winter seasons were given to Birds Unit for 
analysis (Table 2). For the aforementioned species the data were compared 

Tabb 2 CR bird count data for Lough Denavamgh SPA 
Number of Note? 

2004105 5 

2005106 3 Coverage spanning peak months (Nommber, 
December, January) 

Coverage spanning peak months (Janua 

Using this data set four-year mean peak values were calculated for all species 
recorded. Table 3 lists the various count data for the relevant species. The 
percentage change of the these values from the baseline data are also 

Nation Cornmime. Slimbridge 
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presented alongside the all-Ireland change in the relevant population 
estimates during the period from 1994/95 - 1998/99 to 1999L2000-2003/048. 

at the all-Ireland scale. 

Table 3 Analysis of CR dam 

Tufted Duck 250 

The above analysis show marked declines in the site estimates of all of the 
species of special conservation interest. These declines range from 22 to 77% 
when compared to the baseline dataset for the five year period 1995/96 - 
1999/2000. These recorded declines were cross checked with trend data at 
the all-Ireland scale in order to see if such declines were in agreement with 
national population changes. Table 3 clearly shows that the recoded declines 
at the site level are not in agreement with the national trends. This indicates 
possible pressure from one or more source impacting the waterbirds of the 
site, an insufficiency of bird data to accurately quantlfy the waterbird 
populations of the site or a combination of both. 

" 

latest f i i-year mean peak values. 

Tabb 4 Analysls of CWeBS dab 
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2003/04 - 2007/08 

Figure 1 shows the annual 'sum of peaks' (i.e. the sum of recorded individual 

began in 1995. A steep recorded decline starting at the 2001/02 winter period 
is evident. This recorded decline continued until the 2003/04 season. The 
overall trend since then has been one of an overall increase. The decline in 
overall numbers coincided wfih a severe drop in the number of species using 
the site, which in parallel with th 
increased in recent years. 

unt of individuals using the site ha 

1- 1996/97 1997/98 1998/99 1 W W  2Wl/O2 2o(wo3 2o03/04 2o04/05 

Swan numbers at this site. W wan could well use 
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3 .  

this lough for feeding purposes but it is possible the main use of this site 
would be as a roosting site at night with the swans departing the lough in the 
moming to feed on nearbyagricultural land. 

It is possible that the recent waterbird counts may haws been conducted when 
the majority of the Whooper Swans are away from the site thus the reported 
decline may not reflect the ttue site use by Whooper Swan. Robinson et al 
(2004) noted that the northem basin is the most frequently used area and that 
adjacent feeding areas remain largely unknown but birds have been obsewed 
feeding at the northem end at Donore (N4065) and on grassland in the estate 
near Williamstown. 

- -  
kuning on the bugh. It shows an overall trend of decreasing numders d 

e :  
I I  
I 1  
I I  
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At Lough Demvaragh Pochard and Tufted Duck are the two main 
representatives of the feeding guild known as diving ducks which primarily 
forage in open writer by diving to the lake bottom in search of their prey. 
Waterbird diet at any particular site is a function of prey availability and hence 
is site specif~c. However it is understood that vegetative matter (e.g. Chara, 

can often be favoured by Pochard in 
show a preference for molluscs. 

Although nd  as numemus as Poc 
populations of Mallard (Anas platyrhynchos), Teal (Anas crecca), Wigeon 
(Anas penebpe) and Goldeneye do not folbw a similar pattern of steady 
decline. In contrast to the diving ducks Teal, Wigeon and Mallard would occur 
less in the open waters areas of the lake and f a w r  the more littoral parts. No 
real abundance patterns emerges for these duck species except for the recent 
spike in numbers of Teal (247) which constitute an overall increase of over 
300% from the baseline 5-year period. 

The waterbirds that are classed as allies of the wildfowl contain such species 
as Lttle Grebe (Tachybaptus rufiillis), Great Crested Grebe (Miceps  
cristatus) and Coot. The latter being one of the listed special conservation 
interests for this SPA. The proportion of these species of the total recorded 

I 

I 
~ 

! 

numbers have 
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i 

, 
~ 

ut aquatic inmrtebrates would 

Lapwing Vanellus vanellus and Curlew Numenius arquata). These waders 
usually feed by probing for surface or submerged invertebrates in suitable 

! 

i 
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Black-headed Gull 

would be one of unfawurable conselvation status for each of the species 
listed as special conservation interests of Lough Derravargh SPA. 

When the scope of the data analysis was expanded it appears that the 
declines of Coot are not are severe as nitialy calculated. More targeted 
survey work would be needed in order to further assess the status for 
Whooper Swan at this site. Despite the fact that both Pochard and Tufted 
Duck have declined at the national scale the magnitude of the declines 
reported for Lough Denavargh SPA is of notable concern. 

Using available waterbird data abne it is impossible to reliably attribute such 
declines in recorded numbers to a single causal factor. The dediies of the 
diving ducks 8re contrasted with significant increases in the recorded 
abundances of Teal and Little Grebe. It is noteworthy that even though a 
theoretical overlap in habitat use of Pochard and Tufted Duck with Coot exists, 
they display very different patterns of recorded abundance at ths site. 

Changes in recorded waterbird abundances can often be mu#iiactotial. 
Potential factors indude: a change in the overall ecology of the wtland 
system due to natural succession, eutrophication or other forms of pollution; 
recreational disturbance impacting on a broad scale or targeted to specific 
areas of the lake; hunting pressure M game species; or even changes in 
waterbird survey emphasis and/or effort. 1 
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Further work on this issue is needed to better explain the population trends at 
this site. Such work should include initiatives (1) to increase in waterbird 
survey effort and targeted surveys for those birds that may only use this SPA 
for roosting purposes; (2) to examine the population changes at this site in 
relation to waterbird data collected at adjacent wetland sites; (3) to compile 
available data on the current ecology of wetland habitat of Lough Derravargh 
SPA including EPA and fisheries monitoring data; and (4) to identify the 
sources and intensity of disturbance that the waterbirds of this site are 
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